ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SCCI AL SERVI CES
STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 30, 2002
3:15 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Fred Dyson, Chair
Representative Peggy WIlson, Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghill
Representative Gary Stevens
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna

Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Vic Kohring
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative Beth Kerttul a
Representative G etchen CGuess
Representati ve Joe Hayes

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 342(HES)
"An Act relating to the long term care onbudsman.™

- MOVED HCS CSSB 342(HES) OUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 50
Supporting the participation of Taiwan in the annual sunmmt of
the Wrld Health Assenbly.
- MOVED HIR 50 QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO 313
"An Act requiring that the cost of contraceptives be included in
certain health care insurance coverage."
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: SB 342

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- April 30, 2002



SHORT TI TLE: LONG TERM CARE OVBUDSMAN
HEALTH, EDUCATI ON & SOCI AL SERVI CES

SPONSOR( S) :
Jrn-Date Jrn- Page
02/ 25/ 02 2300
02/ 25/ 02 2300
03/ 04/ 02

03/ 04/ 02

03/ 04/ 02

03/ 06/ 02

03/ 06/ 02

03/ 06/ 02

03/ 13/ 02 2415
03/ 13/ 02 2415
03/ 13/ 02 2415
03/ 25/ 02 2518
03/ 25/ 02 2518
03/ 25/ 02 2518
03/ 25/ 02 2518
03/ 25/ 02

03/ 25/ 02

03/ 25/ 02

04/ 03/ 02 2610
04/ 03/ 02 2612
04/ 03/ 02 2612
04/ 03/ 02 2612
04/ 03/ 02 2612
04/ 03/ 02 2613
04/ 03/ 02 2619
04/ 03/ 02 2619
04/ 03/ 02

04/ 03/ 02

04/ 04/ 02 2794
04/ 04/ 02 2794
04/ 30/ 02

BILL: HIR 50

HOUSE HES COW TTEE

(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S

(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)

(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
HES, FIN
HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( HES)
HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Moved CS(HES) CQut of
Comm ttee
M NUTE( HES)
HES RPT CS 5DP SAME TI TLE
DP: GREEN, W LKEN, LEMNAN,
DAVI S, WARD
FN1: ZERO( ADM
FIN RPT CS(HES) 6DP 2NR
DP: KELLY, GREEN, AUSTERVAN
W LKEN,
LEMAN, WARD; NR: DONLEY,
CLSON
FN1: ZERQ( ADM
FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE
532
Moved Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( FI N)
RULES TO CALENDAR 4/ 3/ 02
READ THE SECOND TI ME
HES CS ADOPTED UNAN CONSENT
ADVANCED TO THI RD READI NG
UNAN CONSENT
READ THE THI RD Tl ME CSSB
342( HES)
PASSED Y19 N E1
TRANSM TTED TO (H)
VERSI ON: CSSB 342( HES)
RLS AT 10: 30 AM FAHRENKAMP
203
M NUTE( RLS)
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
HES
HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

April 30, 2002



SHORT TI TLE: SUPPORT TAI WAN | N WORLD HEALTH ASSEMBLY
SPONSCR(S): RLS BY REQUEST OF ECONOM C DEVEL, TRADE, &

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

04/ 22/ 02 3066 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

04/ 22/ 02 3066 (H HES

04/ 30/ 02 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 313

SHORT TI TLE: | NSURANCE COVERAGE FOR CONTRACEPTI VES
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) MURKOASKI , GUESS, KAPSNER, Cl SSNA,

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/ 14/ 02 1957 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/11/02

01/ 14/ 02 1957 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 14/ 02 1957 (H HES, L&C, FIN

01/ 14/ 02 1957 (H REFERRED TO HES

02/ 22/ 02 2369 (H COSPONSOR( S) :  CRAWFORD

03/ 01/ 02 2448 (H JT- PRI ME SPONSOR(S) REMOVED:
JAMES

03/ 18/ 02 2593 (H JT- PRI ME SPONSOR(S) REMOVED:
W LSON

04/ 30/ 02 (H HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

JERRY BURNETT, Staff

to Senator Lyda G een

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 125

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented SB 342 on behalf of Senate
Heal th, Education and Soci al Services Standing Committee,
sponsor.

RON COMN, Long Term Care Onbudsman

Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority

Depart ment of Revenue

550 West Seventh Avenue, Suite 1830

Anchor age, Al aska 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 342.

REPRESENTATI VE LESI L MCGUI RE
Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- April 30, 2002



Capi tol Building, Room 418
Juneau, Al aska 99801
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HIR 50 as sponsor.

REPRESENTATI VE LI SA MJRKOWSK

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 408

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented HB 313 as one of
sponsors.

BOB LOHR, Director

Di vi sion of Insurance

Department of Comrunity & Econom c Devel opnent

3601 C Street, Suite 1324

Anchor age, Al aska 99503-5948

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 313.

COLLEEN MURPHY, M D., Qostetrician-Gynecol ogi st
3260 Providence Drive

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 313.

El LEEN FARI AN

7010 Fairweat her Drive

Anchor age, Al aska 99518

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 313.

ANNE HARRI SON

3270 Rosi e Creek Road

Fai r banks, Al aska 99709

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 313.

Cl NDY NORQUEST

12225 G nam Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99516

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 313.

SHERRY JAECGER

YWCA

PO Box 90541

Anchor age, Al aska 99509

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 313.

PAULI NE UTTER
Al aska Whnen's Political Caucus
13820 Jarvi Drive

the prine

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- April 30, 2002



Anchor age, Al aska 99515
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 313.

ROBI N SM TH

14100 Jarvi Drive

Anchor age, Al aska 99515

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 313.

KAREN PEARSON, Director

D vision of Public Health

Department of Health & Social Services

PO Box 110610

Juneau, Al aska 99811-0610

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified that HB 313 is a good public
policy bill and asked the commttee to support it.

KATI E CAMPBELL, Actuary Life/Health

Di vision of |nsurance

Department of Comrunity & Econom c Devel opnent

PO Box 110805

Juneau, Al aska 99811-0805

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on HB 313.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-38, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR FRED DYSON called the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 3:15 p.m
Representatives Dyson, WIson, Coghill, and G ssna were present
at the call to order. Representatives Stevens and Joule arrived
as the meeting was in progress.

SB 342 - LONG TERM CARE OVBUDSVAN

CHAI R DYSON announced that the first order of business would be
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 342(HES), "An Act relating to the long
term care onbudsnan. "

Nunmber 0088

JERRY BURNETT, Staff to Senator Lyda Geen, Alaska State
Legi slature, chair, Senate Health, Education and Social Services
Standing Conm ttee, sponsor, presented SB 342. He infornmed the
menbers that SB 342 was introduced at the request of the
executive director of Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority. It

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- April 30, 2002



was introduced to bring Alaska's law in conpliance wth federa
law regarding the long term care onbudsman. He gave the
foll ow ng testinony:

Each state is required to have a long term care
onbudsman under the O der [Anericans] Act. Al aska's
long term care onbudsman is located in the Al aska
Mental Health Trust Authority. Recently, the |ong
term care onbudsnan resigned and was replaced. The
one that resigned cited frustration with the Al aska
statutes. It's one of his reasons [for] |eaving.

[SB] 342 directs that the long term care onbudsman
visits long term care facilities and identifies
probl ens, rather than assumng the nore passive role
of responding to conplaints; provides that no |ong-
term care facility may deny imediate access to an
enpl oyee or vol unt eer.

MR. BURNETT requested that the conmttee adopt Version P.
Number 0206

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON nade a notion to adopt the proposed House
commttee substitute (HCS) for CSSB 342, version 22-LS1591\P,
Laut erbach, 4/30/02, as a work draft. There being no objection
Version P was before the committee.

MR. BURNETT expl ained the changes in the proposed CS on page 3,
Section 2. The new version allows imediate access granted
between the hours of 800 am and 8:00 p.m under any
ci rcunst ances. Between the hours of 8:00 p.m and 8:00 a.m,
i mredi ate access will be granted if there is a scheduled visit,
if there's a conplaint that's being investigated, or if a
resident in the long-term care facility has requested a visit
during that tine. He noted that this was worked out wth
representatives of the nursing homes who were concerned about
havi ng i medi ate access at all tines.

MR. BURNETT explained that Version P clarified that the duties
of the long term care onbudsman are [perfornmed by the long term
care onbudsnman hinself] or through a representative of the
office, which would include enployees and volunteers who are
certified. There is a separation between volunteers and
enpl oyees on page 2, (b), so only the onbudsman or enpl oyees of
the office may subpoena w tnesses, conpel their attendance, et

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- April 30, 2002



cetera, and volunteers are not given all the powers of the
onbudsman.

MR. BURNETT explained that SB 342 gives the long term care
onbudsman guaranteed access to deal wth any conflicts in
access, gives the onbudsman an active role in providing the
techni cal support to volunteer organizations and in protecting
the health and safety of the nost vul nerabl e ol der Al askans.

Number 0428
CHAI R DYSON asked if there have been probl ens.

MR. BURNETT answered that there have been reports of a problem
in getting access or cases where conplaints were perhaps not
investigated in a tinmely manner.

CHAI R DYSON asked what the renedy is if one of the facilities
deni es access according to this new | aw

MR. BURNETT replied that the onbudsman has the power to
subpoena, conpel attendance, et cetera. He suggested that the
long term care onbudsman or executive director of the Al aska
Mental Health Trust Authority be asked that question.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL pointed out to Chair Dyson page 2, |ines
28 to 29, which reads, "The powers described in this subsection
shall be enforced by the superior court.”

Nunmber 0580

RON COMAN, Long Term Care Orbudsman, Al aska Mental Health Trust
Aut hority, Departnent of Revenue, testified via tel econference.
He endorsed everything M. Burnett indicated about the purpose
of these anendnents to the existing statute. From his
experience in health care in Alaska, he noted that there have
been various points of confusion regarding the authority of the
| ong term care onmbudsman but al so t he onbudsman' s
responsibilities.

MR. COMN said he believes that the proposed changes wll help

clarify both of those issues. It will further delineate the
responsibilities of the office, which are to be nore proactive
advocates rather than persons who respond to conplaints. H s

office has nade an effort to respond to what it has heard from
the industry and smaller assisted living facilities. H's office
has no problens with those hours from 800 a.m to 8:00 p.m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- April 30, 2002



being identified for reasonable visits. He said his office
woul d not cone in wthout good cause outside of those hours. He
urged the committee to support the SB 342.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON noved to report HCS CSSB 342, version 22-
LS1591\ P, Lauterbach, 4/30/02, out of conmttee with individua
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being
no objection, HCS CSSB 342(HES) noved from the House Health,
Educati on and Social Services Standing Committee.

HIR 50 - SUPPORT TAIWAN I N WORLD HEALTH ASSEMBLY

CHAI R DYSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 50, Supporting the participation of
Taiwan in the annual summt of the Wirld Health Assenbly.

Number 0920

REPRESENTATI VE LESIL MCGUI RE, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor,
presented HIJR 50. She explained that the Wrld Health Oder
(WHO) convenes a world health assenbly, and this year will be in
Geneva May 14 through 22, in which participants from all over
the world have an opportunity to discuss health epidemcs,
problens, AIDS J[acquired imune) deficiency syndrone], and
cross-border infectious diseases. It is an opportunity to seek
solutions and get direct evidence from other countries about
what is going on. Taiwan has asked to have direct participation
as an observer in this to have that first-hand information to
take back to its people. She referred to a letter of support
that noted it's been a case of "too little, too late" as far as
heal t h epi dem cs have been concerned in Tai wan.

REPRESENTATI VE MCGQUI RE read through parts of the resolution for

the commttee. She noted that the U S [House] passed a
resolution, that substantially mrrors HIR 50 in Decenber 2001
urging Taiwan's participation as an observer. The U.S. Senate

recently passed the sane resolution March 19, 2002.
REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE i ndicated that this resolution wuld be a
gesture of goodwill to Taiwan for the hard work it has put into
heal t h i ssues.

CHAI R DYSON asked who deci des who partici pates.

Nunber 1127

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- April 30, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE MCQUI RE replied it is a coonmttee of people, and
the United States happens to be one of those commttees. It is
a conmttee of the WHO, and the U S. is a voting nenber of that.
She indicated there is an argunment that China considers Taiwan
part of the Republic of China, and people she has spoken with in
Taiwan are fine with that relationship. At the sane tine,
Taiwan has a large population that has separate epidemcs,
separate information, and many times the lag tinme on informtion
from China to Taiwan is too nuch. She said, "That has been the
hurdle, M. Chairman; it's been a political issue, and really
what I'mtrying to say is | don't believe this to be a politica
issue. People's health is not political to ne."

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE reported that Taiwan has been reaching

out to people it has special relationships wth. Taiwan 1is
Al aska's sixth largest trading partner, and they have shared a
special relationship through the years. She indicated that a

resolution fromAl aska's | egislature would carry sone wei ght.
Nunber 1297

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to report HIR 50 out of committee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HIR 50 was reported out of the
House Heal th, Education and Soci al Services Standing Conmittee.

HB 313 - | NSURANCE COVERAGE FOR CONTRACEPTI VES
Number 1317

CHAI R DYSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 313, "An Act requiring that the cost of
contraceptives be included in certain health care insurance
coverage."

REPRESENTATI VE LI SA MJURKOWSKI , Al aska State Legislature, one of
several prinme sponsors, presented HB 313. She told the
commttee that it is an issue of prescriptive equity. She
recogni zed that it being late in the session, HB 313 probably
woul dn't nove, but she appreciated the opportunity to get it on
the record. She referred to a handout put out by The Coalition
for [Prescription] Equity. She said the handout puts forth al
the substantial argunments as to why Al aska shoul d have nandated
prescription coverage.

Nunber 1415

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 9- April 30, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE MJRKOWSKI said that first of all, contraception
is a basic health care need. Contraception is the only
prescription approved by the FDA [Food and Drug Adm nistration]
not routinely covered by insurers. This is an issue that gets

to the heart of talking about prescriptive equity. It is an
equity issue recogni zing that when contraception is being tal ked
about, there is no prescription contraception for nen. Less

than 20 percent of traditional health care plans cover the FDA-
approved net hods of contraception.

Number 1475

REPRESENTATI VE MURKOASKI told the nmenbers in ternms of the equity
i ssue, statistics say that wonen of childbearing age have to pay
68 percent nore in out-of-pocket health care costs than nen.
The bulk of these health care costs are related to reproductive
heal th care services.

REPRESENTATI VE MURKOWSBKI noted that the question, Wat is the
cost to the enployer? always cones up. She pointed out the fact

that covering contraceptives will actually save noney. The cost
for covering contraceptives for a year is about $300, which is
far less than pregnancy services. Contraception is not just

intended to prevent pregnancy, but there are nmany nedical
reasons for prescribing birth control pills, such as prevention

of anem a, osteoporosis, and endonetriosis. Even for those
reasons, it would still not be covered under the insurance plan
at this point. She told the comittee that affordable
contraception wll decrease the unintended pregnancies and

prevent aborti ons.
Nunber 1572

REPRESENTATI VE MJURKOASKI referred to statistics that say 42
percent of live births in Al aska are unintended; 85 out of 100
wonen of reproductive age, who are not wusing contraceptives,
will becone pregnant in a year. Each year in Al aska, 120
pregnancies occur per 1,000 wonen, and 69 percent of these
pregnancies end in live births and 16 percent in abortion. She
coommented that it is legitimate to look at contraception if
menbers are concerned about abortion. This is an issue that
causes di scussi on. It was suggested to her that contraception
is an optional thing for wonen.

Nunmber 1650

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -10- April 30, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE MURKOWABKI referred the conmttee to a footnote in
the EEOCC [U.S. Equal Enpl oynent Opportunity Conmm ssion] decision
in the packet, which is a statenent from Senator Snowe in a
di scussion or debate about the legislation at the federal |eve

for equity in prescription insurance and contraceptive coverage.

The senator st at es: "There is nothing optional about
contraception. It's a nedical necessity for wonen during 30
years of their [lifespan. To ignore the health benefits of

contraception is to say that the alternative of 12 to 15
pregnancies during a wonan's lifetinme is nedically acceptable.”
She urged the conmittee to think about that.

Number 1650

REPRESENTATI VE MJRKOWBKI said the bulletin issued by the
Division of Insurance refers to the EEOC decision of Decenber

2000 that, "pursuant to the Pregnancy Discrimnation Act, the
federal act, enployers nmay not discrimnate in their health
i nsurance pl an by denyi ng benefits for prescription
contraceptives when they provide benefits for other prescription
drugs and devices." The bill before the commttee is saying
that if a plan offers a prescription benefit, it nust cover
contracepti ves. It is not saying if no prescription benefit is

provided, it now has to be provided. She noted that in HB 313,
there is a religious exenption.

Number 1745

CHAI R DYSON asked what happens if Alaska is not in conformty
with the Gvil Rights Act of 1964.

REPRESENTATI VE MURKOWASKI answered that the State insurance for
public enployees <currently covers contraception, but the
retirement plan is not covered. She agreed that an enpl oyer who
offers a plan that does not provide for prescriptive coverage
could be subject to a lawsuit. In answer to the question, she
sai d she does believe the state has exposure on this issue.

Number 1937

CHAI R DYSON asked if insurance conpanies are required to cover
prescriptions for nedicines that prevent an ill ness.

REPRESENTATI VE MJRKOWSKI answered that she was only famliar
with those nmandates that are currently in statute, for instance,
mammogr ans, prostate screening, and diabetes coverage, and
wasn't sure of the answer to the question.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- April 30, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE MJURKOWSKI, responding to comments from Chair
Dyson, remarked that it's not an issue of [insurance conpanies]
covering prescriptive drugs equally for men and wonen.
Representative Murkowski said the issue is: "should |I choose to
becone pregnant, mny pregnancy is covered; if | choose not to
becone pregnant, ny contraception should be covered."

CHAIR DYSON asked if the norning after pill would be covered
under this bill

Nunber 2119

REPRESENTATI VE MJRKOWSKI answered that if she wunderstands it
correctly, then yes it would be covered under the |egislation.
She rem nded the commttee that it has to be an FDA-approved and
prescri bed prescription.

Number 2156

BOB LOHR, Director, Division of Insurance, Department  of
Community & Econonmic Devel opnent, testified that the division
supports this legislation. He gave the follow ng testinony:

It clearly establishes that insurers nust provide
coverage for contraceptives if prescription drug
coverage is provided. The recent federal court case
and the Equal Enpl oynent Qpportunity  Conmm ssi on
opinion on coverage of prescription contraceptives
concludes that enployers may be found in violation of
the Pregnancy Discrimnation Act, if they do not
provi de coverage of prescription contraceptives when
they provide coverage for other prescription drugs.
The court case and the EEOCC opinion are directed to
enpl oyers, not insurers. Therefore, we do not believe
that action by the division is mandat ed.

The division recently issued a bulletin to insurers
requesting their assistance in informng enployers of

t he potenti al vi ol ation under t he Pregnancy
Di scrimnation Act , if t hey fail to provi de
prescription contraceptive coverage when they provide
cover age for ot her prescription drugs. For

enforcenment purposes, a legislation nandate, such as
HB 313, requiring insurers to offer prescription
contraceptive drug coverage, is preferable. An
informal survey by the Alaska D vision of Insurance

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- April 30, 2002



indicates that the largest insurers in the State
already provide prescription drug coverage as a
benefit option for enpl oyees.

Number 2235

CHAI R DYSON asked how rmuch nore the insurers would charge should
t he enpl oyers choose the option.

MR. LOHR replied that the figure he has heard is $1 per nonth.

CHAIR DYSON asked if it is the enployer that exercises the
option, and all the enployees in that conpany are paying the
dollar, or if it is just the individual enployee that exercises
t he option.

MR. LOHR said he believes it would be the enployer making that
choice to have that type of coverage.

Nunber 2281

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS commented that his own insurance conpany
woul d have been far better off providing his famly wth
contraception than to cover his children up to age 21. He said
he would think that the insurance conpanies would be delighted
and woul d save noney in providing contraception instead of life
cover age.

MR LOHR replied that he believes that nobst insurers support

this type of ||egislation. Many have already exercised the
option within Al aska, and there is relatively little opposition
to this concept. He noted that that is unlike nobst insurance
mandates, in which there will be substantial insurer opposition.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked why there would be any additiona
charge to the businessman who covers his enpl oyees.

MR. LOHR answered that he isn't sure how insurance conpanies do
their internal discounting, but the prescription cost is an
i medi ate expense and the long-term savings are hard to
quantify.

Nunber 2337

CHAI R DYSON asked M. Lohr for his guess of the |ower annual
salary of people who have insurance through their enployer. He

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -13- April 30, 2002



said he suspects that people who nmake $15,000 per year probably
don't have group insurance, and people who nmake $40, 000 do.

MR LOHR said that he couldn't give him a nunber, but the
general indication is the |Iower the incone of the average salary
of an enployer, the less likely it would be offering health
i nsur ance.

CHAI R DYSON asked M. Lohr if he knew of any enployees making
| ess than $25, 000 who had heal th insurance.

MR. LOHR replied that he couldn't cite a list, but there are
Sone. Typically, the incidence is |ower. There is also a
correlation of the size of the enployer and the ability to offer
cover age.

TAPE 02-38, SIDE B
Nunber 2378

MR. LOHR indicated that the division believes that the limted
benefit health care insurance definition is unnecessary because
the term "health care insurance plan"” already excludes the
benefits defined as limted benefit health care insurance. He
suggested deleting the follow ng: Page 2, lines 27 through 31
and page 3, lines 1 through 3; Page 2, line 2, delete "limted
benefit health care insurance or".

Nunmber 2325

REPRESENTATI VE MJURKOWBKI concurred with that proposed anmendnent.
She referred to a letter from Blue Cross Blue Shield which
indicates it has no opposition to HB 313.

CHAIR DYSON said he thinks he heard Representative MirkowsKki
infer that if insurance conpanies are not offering or making it
universally available to the clients they're covering, they nmay
be exposed to a lawsuit. He wondered if that was correct.

MR. LOHR responded that the division believes insurers are
providing better custoner service to enployers by advising them
of the EECC decision. Wth this know edge enpl oyers can nake an
i nfornmed choi ce about [various] types of coverage.

CHAI R DYSON asked if it would be the enployers that would get
sued.

Number 2247

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- April 30, 2002



MR. LOHR answered that the enployers are the ones "under the
gun" of the EEOCC opinion; it's not the insurance conpanies. The
division's regulatory authority extends to insurers, so it has
l et them know of this opinion in hopes that they w Il advise
enpl oyers.

Nunmber 2225

CHAI R DYSON asked what the effect of the law would be if this
bill passes. He wondered if the division would be putting any
enployers in jail.

MR. LOHR responded no, he said he doesn't believe that this bill
would give the division any authority over enployers. Its
authority extends to Title 21, which regulates the conduct of
i nsurance conpani es, agents, brokers, et cetera.

CHAI R DYSON asked what would be the effect of this | aw
Number 2200

MR LOHR answered that the law would require prescriptive
equity, and therefore would require that if an insurer chooses
to offer prescription benefits, those benefits would be required
to include contraceptives approved by the FDA. If the insurer
el ects not to offer prescription coverage, that's fine. But if
they don't include contraception, the division would enforce the
mandate wunder law to say, because you ve chosen to offer
prescription drug benefits, you nust provide them on an even-
handed basis with respect to approved contraceptives. If they
don't, the division has a range of enforcenent options which
include fines to wultimately renoval of the certificate of
authority to operate in the state.

CHAI R DYSON comrented that putting this in law would just give
the division a better way of getting enployers infornmed to do
what they ought to be doing anyway to serve the clients and to
protect thenselves fromlawsuits.

MR LOHR said that is correct with respect to enployers. The
division doesn't go there in ternms of its authority. It isn't
trying to boot strap any kind of authority here. The divi sion
is trying to nake sure that enployers are follow ng whatever
mandates are | egislatively approved.

Number 2109

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- April 30, 2002



COLLEEN MURPHY, MD., Obstetrician-Gynecologist, testified via
t el econf erence. She expressed strong support for HB 313. She
said it makes nedical sense, social sense, and econom c sense.
As a small business enployer who now purchases health insurance
for her enployees, she has to have policies that make this
avai |l abl e. It is difficult for the Dvision of Insurance to
rem nd enployers to buy insurance that is consistent with the
EEO process, and it is very difficult for the division to
enforce this. By passing this legislation, it actually gives
the Division of Insurance sone teeth to follow the plans it
regulates in the state. She encouraged the commttee to pass
this bill on so that wonen can get the prescriptions they need,
so that wunintended pregnancy will decrease in the state wth
effective FDA-approved forns of contraception, and that it wll
show that wonen are cared about and are no |onger sexually
di scri m nated agai nst.

CHAI R DYSON asked Dr. Mrphy if oral contraception costs about
$300 a year.

DR. MJRPHY answered that depends. She explained that drug
conpani es can charge nore for new drugs, but there are generic
drugs available for several dollars per pack. If doctors

prescribe the older drugs, they can use cheaper pills wth
conpar abl e effects. The newer pills that have third generation
progesterone tend to be nore expensive. |If sonmeone uses generic
drugs, the cost would be under $100 per year.

Number 2009

CHAI R DYSON comrented that it seens to himthat everyone who has
a good enough job wth health insurance could afford the
prescription contraceptive.

DR. MJRPHY answered that she doesn't think it is a question
about the affordability of different fornms of famly planning
that are FDA approved. She informed the commttee that there
are many different forms soneone could consider using. An |1 UD
[intra-uterine device] costs about $400, and to have it inserted
costs $300 to $400, which is a large amount of noney for people
to pay out of pocket. There are newer nonthly injections that
cost about $50 per nonth. There are new patches comng out, a
ring to put inside the vagina, and oral contraceptive pills; al

these things cost different anounts of noney. She noted that
the bottomline is the EEO issue. In order to be fair to wonen,

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -16- April 30, 2002



they should be able to get prescriptive contraception as a
primary health care need.

Nunber 1949

CHAIR DYSON said he appreciated the equity issue. He wonder ed
if there are other tinmes when insurance conpanies are forced to
pay for prescriptions that prevent a condition.

DR. MJURPHY replied yes. For exanple, there is a nonthly shot
for rheumatic heart disease so bacteria won't get in the
bl oodst r eam She noted there are all sorts of preventive
medi cations. She rem nded the nenbers that it is cost effective
to prevent problens. She said, "An ounce of prevention is worth
a pound of cure."

Number 1909
CHAI R DYSON asked Dr. Murphy about the norning after pills.

DR. MURPHY replied that norning after pills are a backup form of
birth control.

CHAI R DYSON said as he understands it, the nmorning after pills
act after fertilization but before inplantation.

DR. MJURPHY told himthat is not true. There have been a |ot of
theories around the nechanism of action for contraception in
general . Most of the hornonal contraceptives work at many
different |evels. The progesterone is known to thicken the
cervical nucus so that sperm cannot get out of the vagina.
Progesterone also changes the lining of the uterus and makes it
t hi nner. The hornones can also affect tubal notility so that
sperm and eggs are not normally transported and neet each ot her
in the mddle. The estrogen and progesterone are also known to

affect the devel opnent of egg and ovul ation. The only proven
mechani sm of action for enmergency contraception is the delay in
ovul ati on. Basical ly, when a woman t akes ener gency

contraception, it slows down the devel opnent of a devel opi hg egg
so that it is not released within the next 72 hours, so in that
time, the spermdies before it can reach the egg.

CHAI R DYSON asked what the earliest is that fertilization can
t ake pl ace.

Nunmber 1856

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- April 30, 2002



DR MURPHY answered that the egg can be fertilized for
approximately 24 hours after its been rel eased. She noted that
studies have shown that it takes hours for the sperm to
transport itself into the tubes, but contractions in the uterus

hel p the sperm out. She explained that sperm have been observed
in the fallopian tube wthin mnutes of having successful
intercourse with normal cervical mnucus. If there is a healthy
egg sitting in the tube, it can happen wthin mnutes.
Emergency contraception is not 100 percent effective. It wll
not necessarily prevent a pregnancy that is already devel oping.
I f emergency contraception was an abortifacient, it would cause

a higher rate of mscarriage and potentially a higher rate of
mal formati on, neither of which occurs.

CHAIR DYSON expressed concern that this legislation covers
abortifacients in the energency contraception and asked Dr.
Mur phy to comment on that.

DR. MURPHY said she thought he was confusing energency
contraception pill with RU486 which is also known as M feprex or
M fepristone produced by Danco Laboratories. This is a drug
that's an anti-progesterone which can also be wused in other
female health conditions, such as endonetriosis, fibroids, and
breast cancer. It is a drug that can stop a pregnancy.
Energency contraception does not interfere with a successful
pr egnancy.

Number 1631

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked Dr. Mirphy for sonme witten
information on the norning after pill

DR. MJURPHY referred himto a website for this information. The
address is http://ww. akenergencycontracepti on. org.

Number 1520

El LEEN FARIAN testified via teleconference on her own behalf.
She told the commttee that she was irritated when she refilled
her prescription and discovered that for no reason, all birth
control had increased a significant anmount, and her prescription

had increased $4. She wuses [birth control pills] for mny
medi cal reasons, but it is not covered. She stated that it is
not covered by all state unions. The G3UJ [ CGeneral Governnent

Unit] does not cover birth control and hasn't as far as she
knows. She said she believes that birth control is a preventive
item | nsurance covers other preventive things such as

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- April 30, 2002



hepatitis C shots, imunizations, and flu shots. She expressed
frustration about things that insurance doesn't cover.

Nunmber 1396

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON asked M. Farian how nuch she pays per
nont h.

M5. FARI AN answered that in the past she has paid from $20 to
$35; currently, she pays $25 for a generic prescription.

Nunmber 1368

ANNE HARRI SON testified via teleconference. She expressed
support for HB 313. She noted that the nunbers give a clear and
convincing case for the passage of this prescriptive equity

bill. It nust get out of conmttee and onto an affirmative
vot e. She told the commttee that she has a 37-year history as
a nurse and nurse practitioner working wth wonen. She is now
retired and can schedule her still-busy schedule to justify a
bill critical to reproductive health. She told the commttee
that wonen's health, and wultimately the health of their
children, is absolutely dependent on the ability to control
their fertility. They should not have to pay inequitable

anounts relative to nen for their contraception because their
i nsurance conpanies do not pay for contraception. This refusa
of sone insurance conpanies to cover contraception makes no

sense financially or from a health care perspective. She
rem nded the conmttee that contraception can prevent untinely
pregnancies and therefore abortion. She enphasi zed that

contraception is not abortion. She urged the commttee to pass
HB 313.

Nunber 1156

CI NDY NORQUEST testified via teleconference. She told the
menbers that she was astounded that this is even an issue. She
said that she is a Catholic, a Republican, and a busi nesswoman.
She expl ained that one of her reasons she is a Republican is her
intol erance for governnent telling citizens and businesses what
to do. But, sonetinmes that has to be done, she said. It makes
good sense to nmke decisions that are tough decisions but
address the issues of equity and fairness. That is what this is
all about. Both the Cvil R ghts Act and the Pregnancy
Discrimnation Act were passed as a result of the greater good.
No one wanted to admt that discrimnation existed, and
| egi sl ati on was necessary to correct the issue, she noted. The

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- April 30, 2002



bottom line is that wonen and people of color were treated
unfairly. Nei ther act nandated preferential treatnent, just
equal, and that's what is being asked for today.

M5. NORQUEST pointed out that the nunbers do not show that wonen
are treated equally when it conmes to health care issues. Wnen
are paying 68 percent nore than nen on out-of-pocket health care
costs. She explained that she is very famliar with insurance
pl ans since she used to nanage the benefit plan for National
Bank of Al aska. She stated that wonen do not get treated
equal ly. She noted that this does save noney for businesses.
The Washi ngton Busi ness G oup on Health found that not providing
contraceptive coverage would cost enployers 15 to 17 percent
nor e.

Number 1055

M5. NCRQUEST addressed sone questions asked earlier. Responding
to a question about how | ow people's incone was before they were
eligible for health insurance, she reported that Wl ls Fargo has
enpl oyees nmaking as little as $16,500 a year who do receive
heal t h i nsurance. Wlls Fargo stepped up to the plate in the
1990s and said it was an EEO enployer, and it was going to treat
its wonen fairly and equally, so it covered contraception. She
said the ram fications about not passing or passing this are not
from a |legal standpoint, but fromwhat is right and in the best
interest of the public. She expressed disappoi ntnent about sone
condescending comments and for taking tinme off from work to
testify on sonmething that really is a "no brainer."”™ She urged
the conmttee to pass HB 313.

Nunmber 0860

SHERRY JAECER testified via teleconference on behalf of the YWCA
[ Young Wonen's Christian Association]. She expressed support
for HB 313. She told the comrittee that this bill addresses the
current inequities involved in wonen's health care plans and
woul d require fairness in the workplace. It has the potenti al
to affect 140,000 wonmen of chil dbearing age in Alaska. It would
elimnate gender discrimnation under Title 7 of the Guvil
Rights Act of 1964 and would address the disparity requiring
wonen to spend nearly 70 percent nore than nen on prescription

drug expenses. She pointed out that contraception is a basic
health care issue for wonmen and a critical contributor to
i nproved maternal and child health. This bill is not asking for
preferential treatnent; it's asking for equitable treatnent

within the context of an existing drug prescription benefit.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- April 30, 2002



The adoption of HB 313 would ensure fairness and equity for
wonen in the workplace, and it would not burden the insurance
provi ders. It would ensure full coverage for wonmen for all of
their reproductive health care needs, and finally, it would
ensure that Alaska would not be violating the Cvil R ghts Act
of 1964. She urged the conmttee to nove HB 313.

Nunmber 0758

PAULI NE UTTER, Al aska Wnen's Political Caucus, testified via
t el econf erence. She told the committee that the caucus had a
booth at a wonen's show in Anchorage and circulated a petition
that said if Viagra is funded, why isn't birth control. She was
astounded by the nunmber of people who signed on. She suggested
that the Ilegislature should have the wherewithal to pass
legislation that is in the best interest for wonen in this
state. She urged the conmittee to pass HB 313 out of the
committee.

Number 0700

ROBIN SMTH testified via tel econference. She noted that sone
people's religious beliefs run counter to the use of
contraceptives or energency contraception. She pointed out that
there are nmany instances in which health insurance provides
coverage that conflicts wth individual religious Dbeliefs.
Christian Scientists do not believe in medical treatnent except

for dental and vision care. But nost people expect health
i nsurance to be avail able. Jehovah's Wtnesses do not believe
in blood transfusions. She said she <can't inmagine blood
transfusions not being covered by health insurance. The Roman
Catholic Church opposes tubal ligations and vasectom es. The
majority of health insurance conpanies provide for this
permanent form of contraception. Provi dence Hospital's health
i nsurance covers birth control pills for its enployees. She
said she is sure that Pope John Paul does not approve. She

noted that there is a wde variety of people' s belief systens
and how they inpact what people do regarding their health care
treat nent.

M5. SMTH rem nded the nenbers that wonmen can becone pregnant

for nore than 30 years of their Ilives. Since nost wonmen only
want two or three children, they spend the vast nmjority of
their reproductive years preventing pregnancy. Contraception

also aids wonen in facing the children they have; therefore,
ensuring the health of the nother and the health of the infant
that may be born. She concl uded:

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -21- April 30, 2002



You are here to enable working wonmen to have equal and
fair treatnment under the |aw. You are here, and if
you pass this bill, you will be preventing unintended
pregnancy, and as a result, preventing abortion. You
are not forcing anyone to use any form of

contracepti on. You are sinply ensuring that wonen
have what [they] need for basic health care coverage.
Pl ease pass this prescription fairness bill out of
commttee. Please make this bill |aw

Nunber 0523

KAREN PEARSON, Director, Division of Public Health, Departnent
of Health & Social Services (DHSS), testified that this is a

good public policy bill. She told the commttee that naking
sure that every child is wanted is an inportant part of public
health and is aided by a contraceptive equity bill such as
HB 313. She explained that the statistic of 42 percent of

unintended births in Alaska nmeans there are about 4200 children
born every year in Alaska to parents who didn't intend to have
that child at that tine. That doesn't make an unwanted child.
That's a nuch smaller percent. She recogni zed that unintended
children are very often welconed, but for parents to have the
ability to plan for this is very inportant. The equity piece is
that there are no categorical prescriptions put aside other than
contraceptives. Since only wonmen can get pregnhant, it is very
much a gender issue.

M5. PEARSON referred to Chair Dyson's question about soneone's

salary and insurance. She told him that the Departnent of
Labor, other departnents, and the DHSS have done an enployers’
survey related to insurance, and those results wll be comng

out soon. She renenbered being surprised when she saw the first
raw information that showed it wasn't necessarily all the big
enpl oyers who provide insurance and all the small enployers who

don't. There is real diversity in terns of who does and who
doesn't provide coverage in Alaska and the income levels of the
people who then receive that. She said she wll nake that

informati on available to the conmm ttee next nonth.

Nunmber 0372

CHAI R DYSON comrented that he didn't hear any testinony today
saying that if this becones law, wonen wll have contraception
that they didn't have before. It sounds to himthat if the oral
contraceptives can be had for $100 a year, it's really not an

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -22- April 30, 2002



econom c issue; it's an equity issue according to nost of the
t esti nmony.

MS. PEARSON said he was probably right but shared sonething that
may change that. She nentioned that people are aware that
famly planning services are provided through the D vision of
Public Health, and the price increases for oral contraceptives

over the past 12 nonths has been absolutely anazing. The
whol esale rate that the departnent buys them at has increased
from 100 to 300 percent. She commented that what's going on in

the pricing and charges is disturbing. She agreed that the real
issue is equity, but with the huge increases in prices, it's
al so a growi ng econom c issue. Passage of this bill guarantees
that equity for wonen in pharmaceutical coverage, and she asked
the commttee to support this.

Number 0192

CHAI R DYSON said [HB 313] doesn't require religious enployers to
carry it. He wondered who decides what's a religious enployer.

Number 0120
KATIE CAMPBELL, Actuary Life/Health, Division of |Insurance,

Department of Community & Econoni c Devel opnent, explained that a
religious enployer is defined in the law as an enployer with a

primary purpose of instilling religious principles. The
Division of Insurance wuld be the one to enforce this
provi si on.

TAPE 02-39, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR DYSON asked about protecting the anonymty of a mnor
child getting contraception on the parents' insurance.

Nunber 0126

MR. PEARSON answered that as she understands it, that's not a
violation of the privacy. It would be a violation if the
provi der shared with the parent, "I saw your son or daughter and
provided this service." She comented that she believes certain
young people choose to wuse public famly planning services
rat her than choosing to go to their famly physician and use
their parents' insurance for coverage of that service.

Number 0178

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -23- April 30, 2002



CHAIR DYSON referred to page 2, lines 12 through 14, and said
t he copaynent, "you could have it, but it had to be the same for
all prescription in the sane category."

MS. PEARSON agreed that was correct. There couldn't be a copay
of $5 for all drugs, except contraceptives would have a copay of
$50. That woul d not be acceptabl e.

[HB 313 was hel d over.]

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Committee neeting
was adjourned at 4:53 p.m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 24- April 30, 2002



